# Registration of a Charge

Company name: 1PM (UK) LIMITED

Company number: 03681755

Received for Electronic Filing: 29/05/2014



# **Details of Charge**

Date of creation: 27/05/2014

Charge code: 0368 1755 0079

Persons entitled: BANK OF LONDON AND THE MIDDLE EAST PLC

Brief description: N/A

Contains negative pledge.

# Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

# Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT

**DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION** 

IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: JOSEPH CROWLEY



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 3681755

Charge code: 0368 1755 0079

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 27th May 2014 and created by 1PM (UK) LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 29th May 2014.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 29th May 2014

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006







Dated

27th MAY 2014

# BANK OF LONDON AND THE MIDDLE EAST PLC 1PM (UK) LIMITED

MASTER DEED OF ASSIGNMENT FOR SUB-HIRE AGREEMENTS

> I certify that I have seen the original Document and that this is a complete And accurate copy of the original.

Date: 29 MAJ 2014
Solicitors name: Joseff Crowled J
Signature: Mac Country
Address: Bank of London and The Middle East plc, Sherborne House,

119 Cannon Street London EC4N 5AT

# Contents

	Clause	Page
1	Definitions	1
2	Covenant to pay	3
3	Assignment	4
4	Proceeds of Assigned Assets	4
5	Notice of Assignment	5
6	Rights of Assignee	5
7	Representations and warranties	5
8	Undertakings	7
9	Power of attorney	9
10	Consolidation of securities	9
11	Effectiveness of security	9
12	Remedies, time or indulgence	10
13	Notices and communications	11
14	Confidentiality	11
15	Disclosure of information	12
16	Expenses and indemnity	12
17	Force majeure	12
18	Further assurance	12
19	Suspense account	13
20	Effect of insolvency	13
21	Certificates etc	13
22	Third party rights	
23	Assignment and transfer	13
24	Counterparts	
25	Joint and several liability	
26	Governing law	
27	Jurisdiction	14
1	Certificate of Assignment	
2	Form of Notice of Assignment	
3	Notice details	

#### Between

- (1) **1pm (UK) Limited** (No. 03681755) whose registered office is at 15 St James's Parade, Bath BA1 1UL (**Assignor**); and
- (2) Bank of London and The Middle East plc (No. 05897786) whose registered office is at Sherborne House, 119 Cannon Street, London EC4N 5AT (Assignee).

#### Whereas

- (A) The Assignee has entered into and/or may enter into certain lease and/or hire purchase agreements with the Assignor from time to time as they may from time to time be amended, restated, novated or replaced (howsoever fundamentally, including by an increase in the amount of rental or the equipment rented, hired or leased under them, the alteration of the nature, purpose or period of such rental or equipment or change of its parties) (Agreements) whereby the Assignee will let certain vehicles, equipment and/or other goods to the Assignor (Goods) subject to and upon the terms contained therein.
- (B) It has been agreed that from time to time the Assignor may sub-hire the Goods to sub-hirers (Sub-Hirers) under sub-hire agreements (Sub-Hire Agreements) in accordance with the terms of the Finance Documents.
- (C) In consideration of the Assignee agreeing to enter into the Agreements the Assignor has agreed to execute this Deed, whereby the Assignor will assign to the Assignee from time to time its rights (including the right to receive the payments due) under certain Sub-Hire Agreements.

#### It is agreed

#### 1 Definitions

1.1 In this Deed, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

Affiliate means, in relation to any person, a Subsidiary of that person or a Holding Company of that person or any other Subsidiary of that Holding Company

**Authorisations** means any authorisation, consent, permission, approval, resolution, licence, exemption, filing, notorisation or registration

**Business Day** means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are generally open for business in London

**Finance Documents** means this Deed, the Master Agreement, the Agreements, the Purchase Agency Letter, the Guarantee and any other agreement entered into from time to time between the Assignor and the Assignee in connection with the Agreements, or any of them and any document identified as a Finance Document by the Assignee and the Assignor in writing from time to time

**Finance House Base Rate** means the finance house base rate from time to time published by the Finance and Leasing Association (or any successor or replacement body, association, entity or organisation from time to time)

**Guarantee** means the parent guarantee dated on or about the date of this Deed and granted by 1pm plc in favour of the Assignee

Holding Company means, in relation to a company or corporation, any other company or corporation in respect of which it is a Subsidiary

Master Agreement means the Master Hire Purchase Agreement executed by the Assignor and the Assignee on or about the date of this Deed as it may from time to time be amended, restated, novated or replaced (howsoever fundamentally, including by an increase in the amount of rental or the equipment rented, hired or leased under it, the alteration of the nature, purpose or period of such rental or equipment or change of its parties) and each hire purchase schedule entered into from time to time pursuant thereto

Material Adverse Effect means something has or maybe likely to have a material adverse effect, in the opinion of the Assignee, on:

- (a) the financial condition or business of the Assignor and/or
- (b) the ability of the Assignor to perform and comply with its obligations pursuant to the terms of this Deed and/or any Finance Document

Potential Termination Event has the meaning given to it in the Master Agreement

Purchase Agency Letter means the purchase agency letter dated on or about the date of this Deed and made between the Assignor and the Assignee

Secured Liabilities has the meaning given in clause 2.1 below

Security Period means the period commencing on the date of this Deed and ending on the date when the Secured Liabilities have been unconditionally paid and discharged to the Assignee in full

Sharia'a means the rules, principles and parameters of Islamic law

**Subsidiary** means a subsidiary within the meaning of section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 and any company which would be a subsidiary undertaking within the meaning of section 1162 of the Companies Act 2006

Tax means all present and future taxes, levies, imposts, duties or charges in the nature (including any penalty or interest payable in connection with any failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same)

#### 1.2 Construction

Any reference in this Deed to:

- (a) clauses, paragraphs, schedules and appendices are, subject to any contrary indication, to be construed as references to the clauses, paragraphs of, schedules to, appendices to, this Deed and references to this Deed include its schedules and appendices;
- (b) save where the contrary is indicated, this Deed or any other agreement or document or provision thereof shall be construed as a reference to, as the case may be, this Deed, such other agreement or document or provision thereof as the same may have

been, or may from time to time be amended, varied, novated or supplemented in accordance with the terms thereof;

- (c) a regulation includes any present or future regulation, rule, official directive, requirement, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law but if not having the force of law, then being a type with which persons to which it applies customarily comply) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, central bank, department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
- (d) a provision of law is a provision of any treaty, legislation, regulation, decree, order or by-law and any secondary legislation enacted under a power given by that provision, as amended, applied or re-enacted or replaced whether before or after the date of this Deed:
- a person includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality) or any other entity or body of any description;
- (f) a time of day is a reference to London time;
- (g) the singular includes the plural and the plural includes the singular;
- (h) include and including are not limiting; and
- (i) any party includes references to such party's permitted successors and assigns, unless otherwise expressly provided in this Deed.

## 1.3 Effect as a deed

This Deed is intended to take effect as a deed notwithstanding the fact that any party to this Deed may only execute this Deed under hand.

# 2 Covenant to pay

- 2.1 The Assignor covenants with the Assignee to pay to the Assignee the following sums (together the **Secured Liabilities**):
  - (a) all sums due and to become due to the Assignee pursuant to and in connection with the terms of the Finance Documents or otherwise (whether present, future, actual or contingent); and
  - (b) all costs charges and expenses of any kind whatsoever including legal and other professional costs and charges incurred by the Assignee in taking any steps whether by way of legal proceedings or otherwise to enforce any of the provisions of the Finance Documents such costs charges and expenses to be payable in all cases on a full indemnity basis and so that any taxation of the Assignee's legal costs charges and expenses shall be on a solicitor and own client basis.
- 2.2 If the Assignor fails to pay any amount due under this Deed or any of the Finance Documents on the due date for payment thereof or, in the case of a sum payable on demand, the date for payment specified in such demand, then the Assignee shall be entitled to charge a late payment charge for the delay period in the amount of 2% per annum above the Finance House Base Rate from time to time on the amount due (Late Payment Amount). This Late

Payment Amount shall be used to pay any actual costs incurred by the Assignee (not to include cost of funding or any opportunity costs) as a result of the failure of the Assignor to pay due amounts under this Deed or any of the Finance Documents. The remaining sum of the Late Payment Amount shall be donated on behalf of the Assignor and in accordance with the guidelines set by the Assignee's Sharia'a Supervisory Board to charity.

## 3 Assignment

- 3.1 As a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities, the Assignor hereby assigns to the Assignee with full title guarantee the following:
  - (a) the full benefit of the Sub-Hire Agreements entered into by the Assignor from time to time including the right to receive all monies now and hereafter to become due to the Assignor under the Sub-Hire Agreements; and
  - (b) the benefit of all guarantees indemnities negotiable instruments and securities taken by the Assignor and/or assigned to the Assignor in connection with any and all such Sub-Hire Agreements,

and the Assignor shall hold the same unto the Assignee subject only to the proviso for reassignment herein contained.

- 3.2 The Assignor further agrees that (without prejudice to clause 3.1 above) the execution of a Certificate of Assignment in the terms set out in appendix 1 (Certificate of Assignment) hereto shall constitute an assignment by the Assignor as owner with full title guarantee to the Assignee (as a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities) of the following:
  - (a) the Sub-Hire Agreements specified in the schedule to the Certificate of Assignment, including all monies then and thereafter to become due to the Assignor thereunder; and
  - (b) the benefit of all guarantees indemnities negotiable instruments and securities taken by the Assignor in connection with such Sub-Hire Agreements,

and the Assignor shall hold the same unto the Assignee subject only to the proviso for reassignment herein contained.

Provided always that if the Assignor shall pay to the Assignee all sums hereby covenanted to be paid the Assignee shall at the request and cost of the Assignor re-assign to the Assignor the Assigned Assets or otherwise discharge this security.

3.3 The Sub-Hire Agreements assigned to the Assignee pursuant to clauses 3.1 and/or 3.2 above are herein referred to as the **Assigned Agreements** and the subject matter of the assignments referred to in clauses 3.1 and/or 3.2 is herein referred to collectively as the **Assigned Assets**.

### 4 Proceeds of Assigned Assets

4.1 All of the proceeds of the Assigned Assets received by the Assignor shall be deemed to have been received by it for and on behalf of and as trustee for the Assignee and the Assignor shall apply the same in such manner as the Assignee shall direct from time to time.

4.2 It shall not be incumbent on the Assignee to take any steps or institute any proceedings for the recovery of the Assigned Assets or any part thereof nor shall the Assignee be answerable for any loss arising from having neglected to take such steps or institute such proceedings.

## 5 Notice of Assignment

- (a) The Assignor shall give notice of assignment (**Notice of Assignment**) in the form set out in appendix 2 (Form of Notice of Assignment) to the other parties to each Assigned Asset on the occurrence of any Potential Termination Event which is continuing and at any other time if instructed to do so by the Assignee.
- (b) The Assignor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure that the recipient of each Notice of Assignment acknowledges that notice by providing an acknowledgement in substantially the form set out in appendix 2 (Form of Notice of Assignment) to the Assignee within 7 days of the Notice of Assignment being given.
- (c) If the Assignor does not serve a Notice of Assignment upon the relevant counterparty when required to do so under this clause 5, or if the Assignee does not receive the relevant acknowledgment from the relevant counterparty within 7 days from the date of the Notice of Assignment, the Assignee may serve Notice of Assignment upon the relevant counterparty itself.

# 6 Rights of Assignee

Upon giving notice of assignment pursuant to clause 5 the Assignee shall forthwith be entitled to put into force and exercise all the rights powers and remedies possessed by it according to law as assignee of the Assigned Assets and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing shall have the rights:

- (a) to collect recover compromise settle and give a good discharge for any and all monies and claims for monies for the time being comprised in the Assigned Assets;
- (b) to exercise in relation to the Assigned Assets all such rights as the Assignor then might exercise in relation thereto; and
- (c) to apply any or all of the income from the Assigned Assets in or towards the satisfaction of any sum hereby covenanted to be paid by the Assignor to the Assignee.

## 7 Representations and warranties

- 7.1 The Assignee has entered into this Deed in full reliance on the representations and warranties of the Assignor set out in this clause 7 and the Assignor hereby represents and warrants to the Assignee on the date of this Deed:
  - (a) the Assignor is a limited liability company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation and it has the power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted;
  - (b) to the best of the Assignor's knowledge, information and belief all financial and other information given by it to the Assignor in connection with Deed, including the negotiation thereof, is true and there are no other facts or considerations the omission of which would render any such information misleading in a material adverse manner;

- (c) the Assignor has full power and authority to enter into this Deed to which it is a party and the execution of this Deed to which it is a party has been duly authorised by all necessary corporate action;
- (d) the Assignor has and will at all times maintain all Authorisations required to enable it to perform its obligations under this Deed and in relation to the Secured Liabilities;
- (e) there are Authorisations required on the Assignor's part to permit the entering into and due performance of this Deed and that any filing or registration requirements on its part have been complied with;
- (f) the obligations on the Assignor's part arising under this Deed shall constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations enforceable against it in accordance with the terms of this Deed;
- (g) neither the entering into nor the performance of this Deed shall constitute or give rise to any breach of or default under its constitutional documents, any law or regulation applicable to it or any agreement by which the Assignor is bound;
- (h) under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or its domicile or residence, as the case may be, in force at the time this representation is given or deemed given, the claims of the Assignee against it under this Deed will rank at least equal with the claims of all its other unsecured creditors in respect of its other present and future unsecured obligations;
- the execution of this Deed by the Assignor constitutes, and its exercise of its rights and performance of its obligations hereunder will constitute, private and commercial acts done and performed for private and commercial purposes;
- (j) the Assignor is not required to make any deduction for or on account of Tax from any payment it may make under this Deed and no stamp or registration duty or similar Tax or charge is payable in its jurisdiction of incorporation in respect of this Deed;
- (k) except as disclosed in writing to the Assignee, no event has occurred or circumstance arisen which has or is likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Assignor since the date of its last consolidated audited annual accounts;
- no litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings have been started or, to its knowledge, threatened, which have or, if adversely determined, are reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect;
- (m) the Assignor has entered into this Deed after its own independent satisfaction of their being Sharia'a compliant, it is satisfied that for itself this Deed does not contravene Sharia'a and it does not have any objection, nor will it raise any objections, as to matters of Sharia'a compliance in respect of or otherwise in relation to the provisions of this Deed;
- except pursuant to this Deed, the Assignor is the sole, lawful and beneficial owner of all the Assigned Assets free from encumbrances; and
- (o) this Deed is an effective and enforceable security over the Assigned Assets and every part of them.
- 7.2 The Assignor further represents and warrants in relation to each Assigned Agreement:

- (a) that it is fully valid, binding and enforceable against the customer therein named;
- (b) that any advance rental shown as paid has in fact been paid in the manner therein stated;
- (c) that the particulars of the customer therein named and of the Goods the subject thereof are correct in every respect and that such Goods have been duly delivered to the customer therein named;
- (d) that all the requirements of all relevant enactments or regulations for the time being in force have been complied with in relation to the Assigned Agreement and the Goods the subject thereof and in relation to any contract or guarantee or indemnity given in connection therewith;
- (e) that no right of action is vested in the customer therein named in respect of any representation, breach of condition, breach of warranty or other express or implied term or relating to the Goods the subject thereof;
- (f) that the Assignor has no knowledge of any fact which would or might prejudice or affect any right power or ability of the Assignee to enforce any term or terms thereof;
- (g) that the Assignor is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Assigned Assets free and clear from any lien, charge, encumbrance or other third party interest whatsoever; and
- (h) that the Assigned Agreement is in a form which has been inspected and approved by the Assignee.
- 7.3 The representations and warranties set out in clauses 7.1 and 7.2 above shall survive the execution of this Deed and are deemed to be repeated by the Assignor by reference to the facts and circumstances then existing on each day of the Security Period.
- 7.4 The rights and remedies of the Assignee in relation to any misrepresentation or breach of warranty on the part of the Assignor shall not be prejudiced by any investigation by or on behalf of the Assignee into the affairs of the Assignor, by the performance of this Deed or by any other act or thing which may be done or omitted to be done by the Assignee under this Deed and which would or might, but for this clause 7.4, prejudice such rights and remedies.

# 8 Undertakings

- 8.1 The Assignor shall not, otherwise than:
  - (a) in favour of the Assignee; or
  - (b) with the prior written consent of the Assignee and in accordance with and subject to any conditions which the Assignee may attach to such consent.

create, grant, incur, or permit to subsist any other lien, charge or other encumbrance of whatsoever nature over the whole or any part of the Assigned Assets; sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the Assigned Assets; or permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to the Assigned Assets.

The Assignor further covenants with the Assignee that at all times during the continuance of this security the Assignor shall:

- (a) perform all its obligations (including in particular obligations as to maintenance) devolving on it by contract or otherwise as lessor of the Goods under the Assigned Agreements, and the Assignor shall perform all its obligations under any other agreement or arrangement made between the Assignor and any customer from time to time in relation to the provision of any maintenance, repair and/or other services in respect of any Goods;
- (b) not make nor agree to any variation, supplement, waiver, release, termination or novation in respect of any of the Assigned Agreements or any of the Assignor's rights thereunder, or agree to any request of the sub-hirer under any Assigned Agreement except in accordance with the terms of the Finance Documents;
- (c) not at any time hereafter do or omit to do any act matter or thing which might in any way prejudice or adversely affect the Assignor's rights under any of the Assigned Agreements or any of the Assignee's rights hereunder;
- upon request supply in writing to the Assignee all information required in relation to the Assigned Agreements provided the Assignor is in possession of the information requested;
- (e) provide a certified copy of each Assigned Agreement to the Assignee prior to the Assignor's entry into the Agreement pursuant to which the Goods the subject of such Assigned Agreement are to be hired by the Assignee to the Assignor, and provide further certified copies of each of the Assigned Agreements to the Assignee upon request from time to time;
- (f) issue invoices to the customers named in the Assigned Agreements for the sums payable thereunder promptly upon such sums falling due for payment and provide certified copies of such invoices to the Assignee on request;
- (g) subject to the terms of the Finance Documents, not at any time terminate any Assigned Agreement and/or the hiring of any Goods, and not make nor agree to any reduction in the rentals payable under any of the Assigned Agreements, in each case without the prior written consent of the Assignee;
- (h) ensure that each of the Assigned Agreements is completed upon a form which has been inspected and approved by the Assignee in writing:
- at the Assignor's own expense, institute continue or defend all such proceedings in connection with the Assigned Assets or any part thereof as the Assignee may reasonably require;
- (j) maintain proper accounts in the names of its customers under the Assigned Agreements showing the amounts paid by and due from such customers and shall permit full inspection and audit of such accounts by the Assignee when required and will further permit the Assignee or any person authorised by it to take such copies of the said accounts and such extracts therefrom as it may require; and
- (k) prior to the Assignor's entry into any Agreement and in any event when requested by the Assignee from time to time, execute and deliver to the Assignee a Certificate of Assignment in favour of the Assignee in respect of the Sub-Hire Agreements entered into by the Assignor from time to time.

- 8.3 If the Assignor fails to comply with any of the covenants set out in this clause 8 the Assignor will allow (and hereby irrevocably authorises) the Assignee and/or such persons as it shall nominate to take such action on behalf of the Assignor as shall be necessary to ensure that such covenants are complied with.
- The Assignor will indemnify the Assignee and will keep the Assignee indemnified against all losses and reasonable costs, charges and expenses properly incurred by the Assignee as a result of a breach by the Assignor of its obligations under this clause 8 and in connection with the exercise by the Assignee of its rights contained in this Deed. All sums the subject of this indemnity will be payable by the Assignor to the Assignee on demand.
- 8.5 The Assignor covenants that it shall not grant the customer under any Sub-Hire Agreement the option to purchase the Goods or any item of Goods without the prior written consent of the Assignee, and then only in accordance with the conditions of such consent.
- The Assignor covenants that it shall notify the Assignee in accordance with the Finance Documents if any Sub-Hire Agreement is terminated early for any reason.

# 9 Power of attorney

The Assignor hereby irrevocably appoints the Assignee to be the attorney of the Assignor and in the Assignor's name and on its behalf and as its act and deed to sign, seal, execute, deliver, perfect and do all such documents and things as may be, or as the Assignee may reasonably consider to be, requisite for carrying out any obligations imposed on the Assignor under this Deed. The Assignor hereby undertakes (to the extent to which it can lawfully do so) to ratify and confirm all things done and documents executed by the Assignee in the exercise of the power of attorney conferred by this clause 9.

# 10 Consolidation of securities

Subsection (1) of section 93 of the Law of Property Act 1925 shall not apply to this Deed or the security constituted by it.

#### 11 Effectiveness of security

#### 11.1 Security

The security constituted by this Deed:

- (a) shall be in addition to and shall be independent of every other security which the Assignee may at any time hold for any of the Secured Liabilities;
- (b) shall not merge with any prior security held by the Assignee over the whole or any part of the Assigned Assets; and
- (c) shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security unless and until the Assignee discharges it in writing.

# 11.2 Assignee's rights

The Assignee's rights under this Deed are in addition to and not in substitution for any other security which the Assignee may now or at any time in the future hold for all or any of the Secured Liabilities and may be enforced without the Assignee first having recourse to any such security and without taking any steps or proceedings against any person.

#### 11.3 No prejudice

Nothing contained in this Deed is intended to, or shall operate so as to, prejudice or affect any bill, note, guarantee, mortgage, debenture, pledge, charge or other security of any kind whatsoever which the Assignee may have for the Secured Liabilities or any of them or any right, remedy or privilege of the Assignee under this Deed.

#### 11.4 Preservation of rights

The rights of the Assignee under this Deed and the security hereby constituted shall not be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this provision, might operate to impair, affect or discharge such rights and security, in whole or in part, including without limitation, and whether or not known to or discoverable by the Assignor, the Assignee or any other person:

- (a) any time or waiver granted to or composition with the Assignor or any other person; or
- (b) the taking, variation, compromise, renewal or release of or refusal or neglect to perfect or enforce any rights, remedies or securities against the Assignor or any other person; or
- (c) any legal limitation, disability, incapacity or other circumstances relating to the Assignor or any other person; or
- (d) any amendment or supplement to any of the Finance Documents or any of them or to any other document or security; or
- (e) the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction or reorganisation of the Assignor or any other person; or
- (f) the unenforceability, invalidity or frustration of any obligations of the Assignor or any other person under any of the Finance Documents or any of them or under any other document or security.

# 12 Remedies, time or indulgence

#### 12.1 No variation

The terms and conditions of this Deed shall not be varied otherwise than by an instrument in writing signed by both parties.

#### 12.2 Remedies and waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Assignee, any right or remedy under this Deed shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy. The rights and remedies provided in this Deed are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

# 12.3 Severability

If a term of this Deed is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under any jurisdiction, that will not affect:

- the legality, validity or enforceability in that jurisdiction of any other term of this Deed;
   or
- (b) the legality, validity or enforceability in other jurisdictions of that or any other term of this Deed.

#### 12.4 Set-off

The Assignee may, and is irrevocably authorised, without prior notice to the Assignor at any time or times without restriction to exercise in relation to the Assigned Assets or any part of it all rights of consolidation or combination of accounts or set off the whole or any part of the Assigned Assets (whether or not then matured or payable) against any or all of the Secured Liabilities then payable.

#### 13 Notices and communications

#### 13.1 Delivery requirements

All notices, requests, demands or other communications to or upon the parties shall be in writing (by hand, prepaid registered or international signed for post, e-mail or fax) and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made:

- (a) if delivered by hand before 5.00 p.m. on a Business Day, at the time of hand delivery, and if delivered by hand after 5.00 p.m., or on a non-Business Day, at 9.30 a.m. on the next Business Day;
- (b) if delivered by post, at the time delivery was signed for if signed for before 5.00 p.m. on a Business Day, and if signed for after 5.00 p.m., or on a non-Business Day, at 9.30 a.m. on the next Business Day or (as the case may be) 2 days after being despatched by registered or international signed for post, postage prepaid;
- (c) if given by fax, when received in legible form (provided that if the date of despatch is not a business day in the country of the addressee or if the time of despatch of any fax is after 5.00 p.m. in the country of the addressee it shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next such Business Day), and
- (d) if given by e-mail, when actually received, in readable form and only if it is addressed in such a manner as the Assignee or the Assignor shall specify for this purpose,

and in each case addressed or sent to the appropriate address or number as set out in appendix 3 (Notice details) below or to such other address, e-mail or number as such party may specify in writing to the others. In the case of notices given by telephone under this Deed or made by fax or e-mail, the giver or maker thereof shall, if reasonably requested so to do by the other party or parties receiving it, confirm the contents of such fax or e-mail in a letter to be despatched by registered or international signed for post, postage prepaid, on the same day any such request is so made provided that any failure to so confirm shall not affect the validity of any notice which would otherwise be valid.

# 14 Confidentiality

Save to the extent permitted by clause 15 (Disclosure of information), each of the Assignee and the Assignor acknowledges that any information of the other party which is identified as confidential or which is confidential by its nature (including without limitation the terms and conditions of this Deed and the commercial and financial arrangements evidenced hereby) is considered by the other party as confidential information. Accordingly, each of the Assignee

and the Assignor agrees that it will treat that information as confidential and will not, during and after termination of this Deed, without the prior written consent of the other party, use or disclose that information to any person, except where such disclosure is of information which is already in the public domain (other than by reason of default of the disclosing party), is required by any applicable law or is made to its professional advisers.

#### 15 Disclosure of information

The Assignee may disclose otherwise confidential information in the following circumstances:

- (a) to its professional advisors, including its Sharia'a Supervisory Board, and auditors who request access to such information for the purposes of their appointment;
- (b) to any of its Affiliates;
- (c) to any applicable regulatory, supervisory or other authority, court of law, tribunal or person where such disclosure is requested or required by law, regulation, judgment or order of court or order of any tribunal or requested by such body or authority;
- (d) to any actual or potential assignee, transferee or sub-participant of any rights or obligations of the Assignee under or relating to this Deed on a confidential basis for any purpose connected with the assignment or transfer; and
- (e) to any person with (or through) whom the Assignee enters into (or may potentially enter into) any transaction under which payments are to be made by reference to, this Deed,

provided that in the case of clauses 15(d) and 15(e) the person has entered into a confidentiality undertaking.

### 16 Expenses and indemnity

Forthwith upon demand the Assignor shall pay all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, legal fees) incurred in connection with this Deed by the Assignee (including in relation to preservation or enforcement of rights), or any attorney, manager, agent or other person appointed by the Assignee in connection with this Deed or by statute, and keep each of them indemnified against any failure or delay in paying the same.

# 17 Force majeure

The parties agree that the Assignor shall not be relieved of any of its obligations under this Deed, if such delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Deed results from a force majeure event, being circumstances or causes beyond its reasonable control.

### 18 Further assurance

- 18.1 The Assignor shall, at its own expense, take whatever action (including, without limitation, payment of all stamp duties and other registration fees) the Assignee may require for:
  - (a) perfecting or protecting the security created (or intended to be created) by this Deed over any Assigned Asset;
  - (b) preserving or protecting any of the rights of the Assignee under this Deed;

- (c) facilitating the appropriation or the realisation of any Assigned Asset or the exercise of any right, power or discretion exercisable, by the Assignee or any of its delegates or sub-delegates in respect of any Assigned Asset, including the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of any property whether to the Assignee or to its nominees, and the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration, which in any such case, the Assignee may think expedient; and
- (d) the exercise of any power, authority or discretion vested in the Assignee under this Deed.
- 18.2 Any document required to be executed by the Assignor under this clause 18 will be prepared at the cost of the Assignor.

## 19 Suspense account

All monies received, recovered or realised by the Assignee in the exercise of any powers conferred by this Deed may, in the Assignee's discretion, be accredited by it to any suspense or impersonal account and may be held in such account so long as the Assignee thinks fit pending the application from time to time of such monies (and any profit earned thereon) in or towards the discharge of the Secured Liabilities.

#### 20 Effect of insolvency

If the Assignee considers that any amount paid by the Assignor in respect of the Secured Liabilities is capable of being avoided or set aside on the liquidation or administration of the Assignor or otherwise, then for the purposes of this Deed such amount shall not be considered to have been paid.

#### 21 Certificates etc

A certificate, determination, notification or opinion of the Assignee as to any amount payable under this Deed will be prima facie evidence thereof except in the case of manifest error.

#### 22 Third party rights

- 22.1 Each party and their directors, officers, employees and agents may enforce any term of this Deed which purports to confer a benefit on that person, but no other person who is not a party to this Deed has any right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.
- 22.2 Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Deed, the consent of any person who is not a party to this Deed is not required to rescind or vary this Deed or any other agreement entered into under or in connection with it.

#### 23 Assignment and transfer

- 23.1 The Assignor may not assign, transfer or in anyway dispose of or deal with any of its rights under this Deed without the Assignee's prior written consent.
- 23.2 The Assignee shall be entitled to assign, transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of its interest in this Deed, whether outright or by way of security, and the whole or any part of its obligations under this Deed to any person without the consent of the Assignor.

# 24 Counterparts

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Deed.

# 25 Joint and several liability

Where the Assignor comprises a partnership of two or more persons, their liability shall be joint and several and any reference to the Assignor includes a reference to any one or more of them and any notice served on any one of them shall be good notice to them all.

#### 26 Governing law

- 26.1 This Deed (and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it) shall be governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.
- 26.2 The parties recognise and agree that the principle of the payment of interest is repugnant to the Sharia'a and accordingly, to the extent that any legal system would (but for the provisions of this clause 26) impose (whether by contract or by statute) any obligation to pay interest, the parties hereby irrevocably and unconditionally expressly waive and reject any entitlement to recover interest from each other.

#### 27 Jurisdiction

- 27.1 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of it or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with it) (**Dispute**).
- The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party will argue to the contrary.

This Deed has been executed as a deed by the Assignor and signed by the Assignee on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

# Appendix 1

#### **Certificate of Assignment**

[On letterhead of the Assignor]

To: Bank of London and The Middle East plc

Of: Sherborne House, 119 Cannon Street, London EC4N 5AT

Dated • 20 •

Dear Sirs

We, ◆ a company incorporated in England and Wales with registration number ◆ whose registered office is at ◆ as owner with full title guarantee hereby assign to you:

- the full benefit of the Sub-Hire Agreements specified in the schedule hereto (Assigned Agreements), including the right to receive all monies due and to become due to us under the Assigned Agreements; and
- the benefit of all guarantees indemnities negotiable instruments and securities taken by us in connection with the Assigned Agreements.

We confirm that the foregoing assignment is made pursuant to the Master Deed of Assignment dated • 2014 made between you and us (Master Assignment) and that all the provisions of the said Master Assignment shall apply in relation to the assignment contained herein and the subject matter hereof.

Signed for and on behalf of 1pm (UK) Limited (acting by):
(Director)
(Print name)

# Schedule to Certificate of Assignment

Sub-Hire Agreement No.	Customer Name and Address	Description of Goods
<b>*</b>	<b>*</b>	<b>♦</b>

Signed for and on behalf of 1pm (UK) Limited acting by:		
(Director)		
(Print name)		

#### Appendix 2

#### Form of Notice of Assignment

# [On headed notepaper of [Assignor]]

To: [Sub-Hirer] [Address]

20 \*

#### Dear Sirs

We refer to the [insert correct name and details of the sub-hire agreement] dated • 20 • (Agreement) made between us and you.

- Any reference to Agreement in this notice shall be deemed to include a reference to each and every hire schedule entered into pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
- We hereby give you notice that on 20 we have assigned by way of security the full benefit of the Agreement including the right to receive all monies due and to become due to us under the Agreement, and the benefit of all guarantees, indemnities, negotiable instruments and securities taken in connection with the Agreement, to Bank of London and The Middle East plc (Assignee).
- The assignment provides that the Assignee shall not have any obligations whatsoever under or in relation to the Agreement which remain our responsibility.
- 4 Please make all payments due under the Agreement to the following account:

Bank:

Sort code:

Account number: •

Account Name: •

or such other account as may only be notified to you from time to time by the Assignee

- You are to comply with the terms of any notice, statement or instructions in any way relating or purporting to relate to the Agreement which you receive at any time and from time to time from the Assignee in each case, without any reference to or further authority from us and without any inquiry by you as to the justification for such disclosure, instructions, notice or statement or the validity of them.
- The instructions and authorisations which are contained in this letter shall remain in full force and effect until the Assignee gives you notice in writing revoking them and we shall not be permitted to give you any instructions which are contrary to the terms of this notice without the prior written consent of the Assignee.
- This notice of assignment and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law and we irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of

the English courts to settle any matter or dispute arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice of assignment and acceptance of its terms by countersigning and returning the enclosed copy of this letter and acknowledgement to the Assignee at the address given. We appreciate your co-operation.

Yours faithfully	
For and on behalf of 1pm (UK) Limited	
(Print name)	

## Form of acknowledgement

[On headed notepaper of Sub-Hirer]

To: Bank of London and The Middle East plc Sherborne House 119 Cannon Street London EC4N 5AT

20

Signed

We hereby acknowledge receipt of the above notice of assignment of which the attached is a duplicate (Notice of Assignment).

Words and expressions not otherwise defined in this letter shall have the meaning given to them in the Notice of Assignment.

In consideration of the payment of a £1.00 token now paid by you to us, receipt of which we acknowledge, we confirm and agree that:

- a) we consent to the assignment and the terms referred to in the Notice of Assignment;
- b) we have received no other notices of assignment in respect of the Agreement;
- c) the Agreement is in full force and effect and neither party is in default under the Agreement; and
- d) this acknowledgement and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law and we irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts to settle any matter or dispute arising out of or in connection with this acknowledgement.

Authorised signatory, for and on behalf of [insert name of Sub-Hirer]
(Print name)

# Appendix 3

# Notice details

# The Assignee:

Bank of London and The Middle East plc Sherborne House 119 Cannon Street London EC4N 5AT United Kingdom

Attention: Head of Operations

Telephone: +44 (0) 207 618 0090 Fax: +44 (0) 207 618 0033 E-Mail: operations@blme.com

# The Assignor:

1pm (UK) Limited

Attention: Maria Hampton

Telephone: 08449 670944
Fax: 08444 432779
E-mail: maria@1pm.co.uk

# SIGNATURES TO THE MASTER DEED OF ASSIGNMENT

THE ASSIGNOR				
Executed as a deed by 1pm (UK) Limited	}			
acting by a director in the presence of	) Director			
A.S.				
Signature of witness				
Name HELEN WHLICER				
Address 55 MARSH RD, HILPERTON				
MILTS BAIY 7PR				

Tenis Mods

# THE ASSIGNEE

Signed by duly authorised for and on behalf of Bank of London and The Middle East plc